
page 1 of 4 

City of West Lafayette, Indiana 
Board of Public Works and Safety 

Minutes 
 

January 18, 2008 
11:30 a.m. 
City Hall  

Lower Level Conference Room 
 

 
Members present were Susan K. Goldman, Bradley W. Marley, and Mayor John R. Dennis, who 
presided.   
 

I. PRE-CAUCUS 
Agenda items were discussed among Board members and Department Heads.  
 

II.       APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
A. January 8, 2008 Meeting.   
Mr. Marley moved to accept the minutes of the January 18, 2008, Board of Works 
meetings, as corrected.  Ms. Goldman seconded the motion.  The motion was 
adopted. 

 
III. OLD BUSINESS 

A.  Rejection of bids for 2008 Single-Axle Dump Truck with Plow and Salt Spreader.   
Public Works Director Downey requested that all truck bids opened at the January 8, 
2008 Board of Works meeting be rejected so that specifications for the hydraulics on 
the system can be revised, and the truck can be re-bid. In response to Mayor Dennis’ 
inquiry on the specification changes, Mr. Downey explained that he expects to 
specify a more durable hot shift PTO mounted on the transmission rather than the 
engine-mounted truck pump which was bid.  
 
Ms. Goldman moved that all previous truck bids be rejected. Mayor Dennis seconded 
the motion.  The motion was adopted. 
 

IV. NEW BUSINESS 
A.  Almost Home Humane Society Contract - Mayor  
Mayor Dennis recognized the presence of representatives from the Almost Home 
Humane Society, Executive Director Michelle Warren Dexter, and Board members 
Randy Vernon and Steven Knecht. Mayor Dennis explained the contact amount is 
$39,348, an increase of $9,348 over the prior year. The contract is based on costs 
only to maintain operations and does not generate any excess revenue. Mr. Marley 
asked if the costs were based on last year’s data. Ms. Warren responded that the 
costs were based on 2006 data, and that the 2007 data will be compiled shortly. Ms. 
Goldman asked how 2007 usage compares to 2006. Ms. Dexter said that overall, the 
number of animals is down because Tippecanoe County has contracted for animals 
to be taken to another facility. Ms. Marley asked how an animal from the City of West 
Lafayette is distinguished from an animal from the County, for example, rural West 
Lafayette. Ms. Dexter explained that the Clerk-Treasurer’s office has provided maps 
delineating the City jurisdiction and there has been an improved process for 
identifying City animals. Mr. Marley asked how the City budgeted for this contract 
expense. Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes responded that this item is included in the City 

 
                                          Subject to approval by the Board of Works  

Internet
Text Box
                                Approved at the January 22, 2008, Board of Works meeting.

Internet
Text Box



 
CITY OF WEST LAFAYETTE, BOARD OF PUBLIC WORKS MEETING, JANUARY 18, 2008 

 
 

page 2 of 4 

Services Department in the General Fund budget in the same line item that includes 
the contribution for the Lafayette Crisis Center and the statutory assessment for the 
Tippecanoe Community Health Clinic. The Almost Home Humane Society request 
was taken into account during the 2008 budget process. Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes 
expressed her expectation that there is going to be an opportunity to review the data 
for 2007 and better understand the costs as part of planning for the 2009 budget. Mr. 
Marley referenced the graph illustrating the upward trend line in City payments to the 
Humane Society, and asked what could be done to reverse this situation. Ms. Dexter 
responded that Lafayette is now undertaking a greater education and enforcement 
effort for animal control. Greater community support will hopefully reduce the number 
of animals that are brought to the shelter. The source of the problem is lack of 
responsibility by pet owners. Mayor Dennis commented that it is unfortunate that 
animal control is likely not to be self-supporting activity. Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes 
commented that only 83 dogs were licensed in the City last year, which greatly 
underestimates the canine population. Mr. Marley moved approval of the contract 
with Almost Home Humane Society in the amount of $39,348 for 2008. The motion 
was seconded by Ms. Goldman. The motion was adopted.  
 
B.  William Sanders Memorial Range Contract – Police 
Police Chief Jason Dombkowski explained this is an annual request made to Police 
agencies which use the facility for training for maintenance costs. Mayor Dennis 
asked if the maintenance cost is split equally among the agencies. Mr. Marley asked 
how that works with the relative sizes of Police agencies, the Lafayette Police 
Department being approximately three times larger and the County being about the 
same size than the West Lafayette Police Department. Chief Dombkowski confirmed 
the relative sizes, explained that the Indiana State Police are also involved, and that 
Purdue University provides the land for the facility. Mayor Dennis explained that 
while general costs are borne by all the agencies equally, there are other costs that 
are incurred to which Lafayette Police Department makes a significant contribution, 
such as cardboard targets and cleaning equipment, among other items.  
 
Ms. Goldman moved approval of the contract with the Williams Sanders Memorial 
Range in the amount of $2,000 for 2008. Ms. Marley seconded the motion. The 
motion was adopted. 
 

B. Huston Electric, Inc. Contract – WWTU 
Public Works Director Dave Downey asked that the Board of Works continue this 
item until the next meeting, so that revisions to the contract suggested by City 
Attorney Eric Burns can be discussed with Mr. John Huston. Mr. Downey explained 
that this is an annual maintenance contract for electrical services, diagnostics, and 
troubleshooting covering the Utility’s six buildings, 14 lift stations, and equipment 
therein. Mr. Downey cited his experience of the past eight years that a contract for 
services has been found to be more beneficial and prudent than having an electrician 
on staff.  
 
Ms. Goldman moved to table consideration of the Huston Electric, Inc. contract.  Mr. 
Marley seconded the motion. The motion was adopted.    
 
 
 
 



 
CITY OF WEST LAFAYETTE, BOARD OF PUBLIC WORKS MEETING, JANUARY 18, 2008 

 
 

page 3 of 4 

C. WWTU SRF Payment 
SRF Request No. 66, Loan No.CS182400-01. Payment amount $930,631.00, to 
Atlas Excavating, Inc. for Construction Services for the Western Sanitary Sewer 
Interceptor – Division II and payment of $103,403.00 retainage escrow account. 
 
Mr. Marley questioned Public Works Director about the total budget for the project. 
He noted that he examined the largest number on the contractor billing, the line item 
for the 36” LINED DIP PIPE at a unit price of $150.00. The combined total of the 
quantity amounts for the “This Estimate” column plus the “To Date” column exceeded 
the “Bid Quantity” column. Similarly, the combined total of the dollar amounts from 
these columns is higher than the dollar amount calculated from the original “Bid 
Quantity” and unit price, the excess being $38,000. Mr. Marley asked if the difference 
was due to any change orders on this project. Public Works Director Downey said 
there are no change orders yet. Mr. Marley stated that, in his view, the schedule of 
values should have an additional column that would balance at all times with what 
has been paid and what is to be paid. Public Work Director Downey said they would 
fix that. Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes asked Mr. Marley for clarification of whether he was 
requesting that the project budget column be included on the contractor request for 
payment or whether he just wanted the line item under discussion investigated. Mr. 
Marley stated that he wanted contractor request for payment revised to include the 
project budget column for all line items.   
 
Mr. Marley moved to approve SRF Disbursement No. 66 with clarification of the 
balance of the project and the schedule of values. Motion was seconded by Ms. 
Goldman. The motion was adopted.  
 
D. Bid Addendum No. 1 for Green Meadows Lift Station Bid – WWTU 
Public Works Director Dave Downey explained that the bid opening was advertised 
for January 15, but no contractor has had that date because the bid specifications 
they were given had a bid opening date of January 22.  The bid opening date of 
January 22 was also discussed at the pre-bid conference. This is one of the items in 
the addendum. 
 
Ms. Goldman moved to approve Addendum No. 1 to the Green Meadows Lift Station 
and Force Main improvements Project bid.  Mr. Marley seconded the motion. The 
motion was adopted.    
 
E. Approval of Claims. 
Mayor Dennis read the claim docket amounts aloud. 
  

Payroll                                                $  281,244.95 
Accounts Payable                                  528,154.11 
Accounts Payable                                  347,756.58 
Redevelopment Commission                 118,528.97 

 
Mr. Marley asked whether accounts payable claims are examined for being within 
budget constraints.  Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said yes, that expenditures are not 
allowed in excess of the budget to which they are being charged. There is generally 
no pre-authorization of spending in the City. This is atypical. The statutes provide 
that the City shall employ a purchase order system. The City has used purchase 
orders to track larger projects or as convenient.  The control of expenditures is at the 



 
CITY OF WEST LAFAYETTE, BOARD OF PUBLIC WORKS MEETING, JANUARY 18, 2008 

 
 

page 4 of 4 

line item appropriation. The increasing use of credit cards outside of the areas for 
which they were originally anticipated to be needed, namely travel and online 
purchases, is causing loss of control of the vendor history. The vendor history 
reflects payments to the credit card company, not to the individual vendor. Mr. 
Marley asked how the underlying expense is identified. Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes 
responded that the underlying expense is known from the character of the line item 
that is charged. Mr. Marley asked why the vendor name is not on the bill. Clerk-
Treasurer Rhodes said it is, but that information is only accessible by manually 
examining the individual bill; it is not in the accounting system’s vendor reporting. 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said unintended consequences of the credit card policy and 
the large volume of transactions passing through the City are prompting a review of 
the situation with credit cards and purchase orders. Mayor Dennis stated he has had 
some discussion with the Clerk-Treasurer about these operational issues and 
investigating the purchase order process as a good check and balance. Clerk-
Treasurer Rhodes said while we are meeting the accounting system requirements, 
the difficulty is with financial reporting to management.  Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said 
she anticipates working with Department Heads to develop some recommendations 
that are less cumbersome to departments but more effective for management.  
 
Ms. Goldman moved to approve claims. Mr. Marley seconded the motion.  The 
motion was adopted 

 

F. Department Head Items 
      Street, Sanitation & Recycling 

      Public Works Director Downey announced that there would be no brush pickup on 
Monday, January 21 because of the holiday.  
 

      Parks  
      Assistant Parks Superintendent Pennie Ainsworth announced that the Riverside 

Skating Center will be open on Monday, January 21 for three sessions: 1 to 3 p.m., 4 
to 6 p.m., and 7 to 9 p.m. 
 

V. ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business to come before the Board, Mayor Dennis adjourned 
the meeting at 12:07 a.m. by consent of the Board. 

 

 




